
 

Town of Maggie Valley 
Board of Aldermen Regularly Scheduled (Agenda Setting) Meeting 
May 6, 2025 
 

 

Board of Aldermen Agenda Setting Meeting 

Flossie White Board Room, Maggie Valley Town Hall 

Tuesday May 6, 2025, 10:00 am 

 

Members Present: 

Mayor Mike Eveland, Mayor Pro-Tem Jim Owens, Alderman John Hinton, Alderman 

Phillip Wight. 

Members Absent: 

              Alderman Tim Wise 

Staff Present: 

Town Manager Vickie Best, Town Planner/Assistant Town Manager Sam Cullen, Public 

Works Director Mike Mehaffey, Police Chief Matthew Boger, Senior WWTP Operator 

Seth Boyd, Assistant Town Planner Noah Taylor, Finance Director Misty Hagood, Tax 

Collector Leslie Arrington. 

Others Present:  

William and Rebecca Workman  

Media Present: 

 Paul Nielson, The Mountaineer 

 

Meeting Called to Order 

Mayor Mike Eveland called the meeting to order at 9:58 am on Tuesday May 6, 2025, in the 

Maggie Valley Flossie White Boardroom 3987 Soco Road, Maggie Valley, NC 28751. 

 

Town Manager Vickie Best said the Board would need to act on two of the agenda items at this 

meeting.   

• Agenda item 7- Haywood County GOP event: The Spirit of America Celebration for June 

14, 2025. 

• Agenda item 14- Approve bid for removal of Low Water Creek Crossing.  

 

Consent Agenda 

a. Budget to Actual 

b. A/R Report 

c. Tax Releases 

d. Minutes: April 1, April 8, April 11, April 23, 2025   

e. Certification of Sufficiency: 525 Lewis Lane PIN: 7686-36-9236  

Resolution No. 25-10 Setting Date for Public Hearing: June 10, 2025 

 

Public Hearing: Flood Plain Amendment Ordinance 1102  

Planner Cullen stated that this is a simple language update for the floodplain, but the enforcement 

is still the same. The only change for development guidelines is the removal of the second of the 

three Base Flood Elevation Certificates (BFE). The requirement is not feasible and that is why it 

is being removed; it is not required by the state. BFE requirement will remain one foot freeboard, 

and will not go to two feet, due to concerns of downzoning. 

 



 

Town of Maggie Valley 
Board of Aldermen Regularly Scheduled (Agenda Setting) Meeting 
May 6, 2025 
 

Mayor Eveland stated that eventually it may be a state requirement for 2-foot freeboard. 

 

Planner Cullen stated FHA is requiring 2-foot freeboards for mortgage, but the state does not 

require it.  

 

Approval of Haywood County GOP event: The Spirit of America Celebration: June 14, 

2025. 

Manager Best spoke about the event and said if the Board approves the event there will need to 

be a motion made.  

 

Mayor Eveland asked if there was a packet present.  

 

William Workman asked to speak about the event. He expressed concern and said he has a problem 

with a one-sided political event at the festival grounds. He stated, “No one in this room is more 

patriotic that I, and my family are, but I do not support the red surge.” He continued to express 

concerns and said he would not feel comfortable walking in the crowd that will be at the event. He 

said, “We should represent more than just one organization.” “There are a lot of people in this 

county and state that feel like I do.” He thanked the Board for hearing his concerns.   

 

Manager Best explained that Kustom Kemps that usually hold their event on that weekend have 

cancelled due to the death of one of the event sponsors. They hope to get regrouped and come back 

next year.  She said the Town has always held the position of not discriminating against either 

political party.  

 

There was much discussion between Board members. Mayor Eveland stated that there needs to 

be more discussion at the festival ground meeting about allowing political parties to reserve the 

festival grounds. He asked if there would be a parade. Manager Best stated there was no parade 

planned that she knew of.  

 

Alderman Jim Owens agreed that having a conversation about allowing the parties to reserve the 

grounds must happen.  

 

Alderman John Hinton said there needs to be discussion about rules about not allowing vulgar 

shirts and language at events.  

 

Alderman Phillip Wight said, “Equal Opportunity at the festival grounds in my opinion.”  

 

Alderman Phillip Wight made a motion to approve the Haywood County GOP event for June 

14, 2025. The motion carried 3-1. Phillip Wight (yes), Jim Ownes (yes), Mayor Eveland (yes), 

John Hinton (no).  

 

Resolution 25-11: Accepting Street Dedication of the Streets within Mari’s Meadow. 

Planner Cullen explained there will be a plat and a list with the distance of each road included in 

the agenda packet for the May 13, 2025 meeting.  



 

Town of Maggie Valley 
Board of Aldermen Regularly Scheduled (Agenda Setting) Meeting 
May 6, 2025 
 

Public Works Director Mike Mehaffey said Mari Meadows is paying to have their roads taken in 

before the development has been built. Mr. Cullen said their payment of $14,500 has been 

collected. 

 

Resolution 25-12: Accepting Street Dedication of the streets within Bethel Village HOA. 

Mr. Mehaffey stated it was an agreement between Mountain Projects, Haywood County, Dogwood 

Trust and the Town. He stated that it went smoothly and has been completed.  

 

There was discussion about the Bethel Village paving and Mr. Mehaffey answered questions from 

Board members.  

 

Resolution 25-13: Collecting minimal Taxes ($3). 

Manager Best said in 2003 the Town passed a Resolution that stated we would not collect taxes 

under one dollar. Since that time, there has been an increase in postage, staff time, and materials. 

Due to these increases, staff recommend changing that amount to three dollars.  

 

Maggie Valley Tax Collector Leslie Arrington said General Statute says it can go up to five dollars. 

She has reached out to the county and other towns and three dollars is the number she got across 

North Carolina.   

 

Budget Amendment Ordinance 1112:   Insurance pay for the damaged stage roof at the 

Festival Grounds for $13,473.97.  

Manager Best said Budget Amendment Ordinance 1112 is where the insurance money came in 

from damage to the roof of the Festival Grounds stage.  

 

Mr. Mehaffey stated that there were three bids. Consolidated Roofing was the cheapest bid at 

$11,400 to replace the shingles and drip edge. The price to replace fascia board is not included in 

the price. The repairs are scheduled for the week of June 9th.  

 

Review of the proposed Personnel Policy Updates.  

Manager Best stated that the packets were sent out a couple weeks ago and asked the Board to 

contact her if they have any questions.   

 

Approval of paying $300 per month for ten (10) months for the parking area behind the 

stage at the Festival Grounds.  

Manager Best said the attorney is almost done writing the lease and the rest of the current fiscal 

year would need to be paid out of the current budget.  

 

Mayor Eveland said he would encourage putting fencing up around that parking area. He asked 

Mr. Mehaffey to look into fencing the area.  

 

Mike Mehaffey stated that he would look into it and get bids for it. He stated that it does help 

keep trash from blowing in.  

 

 

There was continued discussion and Mr. Mehaffey answered questions about: 



 

Town of Maggie Valley 
Board of Aldermen Regularly Scheduled (Agenda Setting) Meeting 
May 6, 2025 
 

• The restaurant’s trash is marked off. 

• Access to the property. 

• Discussion about the lease payments to eventually being included in the festival fees.  

• The Culvert at Terry Crider property.  

 

Approval of the bid for removal of Low Water Creek Crossing. 

Manager Best referenced bid handouts that were given to the Board for review. The three bids 

were: 

• Appalachian Siteworks, Inc -$331,543.34. 

• Buckeye Bridge, LLC- $509,697.00 

• Pressley Contracting & Excavating, Inc- $339,975.00 

• Lake States Construction- No bid  

 

Mr. Mehaffey answered questions from Board members. Ms. Best said there would need to be a 

motion to accept the bid.  

 

Alderman John Hinton made a motion to approve the bid for Appalachian Siteworks, Inc for 

$331,543.34. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Other Business  

Resolution 25-14 opposing HB 765 

Planner Cullen said Resolution 25-14 is to oppose HB-765. This bill reduces local government 

involvement in development regulations, as well it limits public involvement. One of the changes 

will make board members civilly liable for many development decisions. Another limits density 

standards. 

 

Alderman Phillip Wight asked what this would do, in terms of making the planning department 

the sole executor for site plans and final plats? 

 

Planner Cullen stated that the bill would give planning staff more power in ways but mostly limits 

what local government boards can do.  

 

There was much discussion among Board members about HB 765 and other bills that were 

currently in the general assembly and the effects it would have on the Town Board members and 

staff. Alderman John Hinton expressed concern about Board members being civilly liable.  

 

Mayor Eveland said that Alderman Tim Wise is not at the meeting but would like to go ahead and 

get a vote on the Resolution opposing the bill.  

 

Alderman Jim Owens said he spoke with Alderman Tim Wise yesterday, and he is in support of 

this resolution.  

 

 

 



 

Town of Maggie Valley 
Board of Aldermen Regularly Scheduled (Agenda Setting) Meeting 
May 6, 2025 
 

 
 

Alderman John Hinton made a motion to approve Resolution 25-14 opposing HB 765. The 

motion carried 3-1. Alderman Jim Owens (yes) Mayor Mike Eveland (yes), Alderman Phillip 

Wight (no), Alderman Tim Wise was absent.  

 

Mayor Eveland asked for the Resolution to be sent to all the members of the General Assembly 

Housing Committee.  

 

Alderman John Hinton asked for the Resolution to be sent to Senator Corbin. Mayor Eveland asked 

for it to be sent to Representative Pless as well.  

 



 

Town of Maggie Valley 
Board of Aldermen Regularly Scheduled (Agenda Setting) Meeting 
May 6, 2025 
 

Alderman Jim Owens invited everyone to join a ribbon cutting ceremony at Maggie Mountaineer 

Crafts new park on May 15 at 11:30. 

  

Adjournment  

Alderman Phillip Wight made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 10:40 am. The motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

        Attest: 

 

___S:    Mike Eveland_______________               ___S:   Kathy Johnson____________   

Mayor Mike Eveland             Kathy Johnson, Town Clerk 

 

 

__S:     Vickie Best__________________                            _____S: Noah Taylor_____________ 

Vickie Best, Town Manager        Noah Taylor, Assistant Town Planner 

                            

 


